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The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of
the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Wildern Academy Trust (WAT) operates two academy schools – one secondary and one primary.  The
secondary, Wildern School is for students from Year 7 to Year 11 serving a catchment area in Hedge
End, Southampton, with a pupil capacity of 1873 and 1930 on roll.  This is a temporary increase in
numbers on roll to meet the basic need locally.  In order to address the increased basic need, WAT will
open a new secondary free school, Deer Park School in September 2021.  Boorley Park Primary School
for students from Year R to Year 6 opened in September 2019 with Year R only and had 74 children on
roll for the year ending 31 August 2021.  This school will grow from Year R each year.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.
The Trustees of Wildern Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Wildern Academy Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities
There were no third party indemnity provisions during the year.  Trustees have indemnity cover
provided by the ESFA Risk Protection Arrangement.
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Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The Academy Trust will have up to 10 Trustees appointed under Article 50 by Members and 2 Parent
Local Governors who must be elected or appointed under Articles 53-56.   The Parent Local Governors
must be parents of a pupil in the WAT at the time they are elected or appointed. The Trustees will make
all necessary arrangements relating to the election of Parent Local Governors.

When there is a vacancy for a Parent Local Governor to be filled by election, the Trust Board shall take
such steps as reasonably practical to ensure all parents are informed of the vacancy.

WAT considers the skills and experience of the existing Trustees when appointing new Trustees to
ensure the GB has the necessary skills to be effective.

The Trustees may appoint co-opted Trustees subject to Article 58.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience.
Induction training will include training on charity law, educational, legal and financial matters. All
Trustees will be given a tour of Wildern School, Deer Park Secondary and Boorley Park Primary.  They
will also be given access to all policies, procedures, minutes, budgets and other documents they need
to undertake their roles.  Trustees’ induction is informal and tailored to the individuals.

There is a Members, Trustees and Governors Allowance policy and Trustees Handbook available on
WAT secure website and Trustees/ Governors are given written information and guidance before
undertaking Curriculum visits and reviews.  Trustees and Governors training opportunities are shared
with all. Training is given as required during the year at Trust Board and Local Governing Body meetings
by external providers and School staff.  Students also attend meetings to present on Focus Groups that
they are taking part in at WAT such as Student Voice, Eco School’s and Rights, Respect and
Responsibility.
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Organisational Structure
The Leadership Team within WAT consists of the Executive Head Teacher, Head Teacher of Wildern
School, Head Teacher of Boorley Park Primary School, three Deputy Head Teachers, six Assistants Head
Teachers and Head of Central Services.  The Leadership Team is supported by five Senior Leaders of
Learning.  The Executive Headteacher is currently an Interim Headteacher at Deer Park supported by a
Deputy Headteacher and from 1 September 2021 there will be two Assistant Headteachers.

The Executive Head Teacher is responsible for strategic oversight of all schools in the WAT and of the
Community provision of the WAT.  The Trust has a culture of high expectations and the Executive Head
Teacher ensures that these expectations are fulfilled.

The Head Teachers of the two open schools in the Trust are responsible for the day to day management
and operation of the schools.  The Executive Head and Head Teachers work together to ensure there is
an organisational structure in place which reflects the values of the school and enables efficient and
effective operation.  They also have responsibility for producing and implementing the schools evidence
based improvement plans and policies.

The Trustees have devolved responsibility for day to day management of WAT to the Executive Head
Teacher.

The Trustees are responsible for agreeing policies, adopting an annual budget, monitoring the use of
the budget and making decisions about the future development of WAT, capital projects and senior
staff appointments.

 Members hold an AGM once within each fifteen-month period and hold general meetings as needed.
The full Trust Board meet at least once each term and the Finance Committee meets twice a term. The
Local Governing Body for each school in the Trust meets half termly and the Community Management
committee meets three times a year.  Other meetings relating to Health and Safety and Safeguarding
are held at least once a term.

 The Executive Head Teacher is the Accounting Officer.
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Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Teachers are paid in accordance with the statutory provisions of the School Teachers’ Pay and
Conditions Document.

Non-teaching staff are paid in accordance with the National Joint Council for Local Government Services
National Agreement on Pay and Condition of Service. Pay progression is determined through the use of
Individual Performance Planning (IPP).

The Executive Head Teacher undertakes the IPP review for the Head of Central Services.  This involves
setting targets at the start of the cycle and monitoring them through the IPP cycle to ensure they are
met. Pay is set in accordance with Hampshire County Council’s pay framework and progression depends
on the successful achievement of targets.

The Governing Body have delegated to the Executive Head Teacher the agreement of performance
objectives for the Head Teachers, Deputy Head Teachers and Assistant Head Teachers.  The Executive
Head Teacher makes recommendations to the Finance Committee on pay progression following
performance reviews.

The Head Teachers’ annual reviews of pay and performance management are undertaken by the
Executive Head Teacher and two Appointed Trustees.

For the Executive Head Teacher, three Trustees and an external independent advisor undertake the
annual review of pay and performance management.  The Trustees determine the Executive Head
Teacher’s pay and act as the Appointed Trustees as set out under the Appraisal Regulations.  These
Trustees make recommendations regarding the Executive Head Teachers pay to the Finance
Committee.

Trade union facility time
WAT had more than 49 full time equivalent employees throughout the whole of the reporting period
and in accordance with the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements)
Regulations 2017 reports that:

FTE number of employees who were relevant Union officials – 0 employees
Percentage of time spent on facility time – no time
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time – 0%
Time spent on paid Trade Union activities as % of total paid facility time hours – no time.
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Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
There are no Connected Organisations or Related Party Relationships.  The Trust Board is committed to
equality for all in the appointment, development, training and promotion of staff, and in all dealings
with students and parents of the trust.  This policy focuses specifically on the employment of staff in
the Trust.  The Trust Board recognises the value of a diverse and inclusive workforce.  The Trust Board
and managers of the schools will operate at all times within the requirements of anti-discrimination
legislation and will promote equality positively in its staffing decisions.  All decisions, including
advertising of vacancies, shortlisting, selection, induction, appraisal, training, development, promotion,
terms and conditions of employment, dismissal and pay will be based on an objective and fair
assessment of school requirements

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)
The Trust Board is opposed to any discrimination against people with disabilities based on assumptions
of their ability or otherwise to carry out the duties of a post in the trust.  Where a candidate who has a
disability is appointed to a post in the trust, reasonable provision will be made for adjustments to the
working conditions or environment where this is practicable

WAT consults with and informs all employees using a variety of methods including all staff emails,
weekly briefings, CPD day events and all staff briefings held the start of each term.  Employees meet
with their line managers in an agreed schedule for two way discussions about relevant matters. These
discussions can be informal or part of the formal school calendar.  Discussions also take place at the
annual appraisal review where a range of aspects and aspirations are discussed.

An annual staff survey is undertaken and the feedback is assessed by SLT and used to generate an
action plan which is reviewed through the year and fed back to staff via meetings and CPD days.

The Executive Head Teacher and Head Teachers are always available to meet with staff to provide
information and answer any questions employees may have on matters affecting them.  Individual one
to one meetings take place if required to discuss matters affecting staff.  There is a detailed action plan
linked to staff well-being which is also available to all staff.
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Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust
During the year, the Trust has engaged with suppliers in a variety of ways, in person, by phone and by
email.  The Trust endeavours to pay all invoices within supplier terms and to respond promptly to any
queries raised. If there are any queries on deliveries or quality of work suppliers are informed quickly to
enable prompt resolution of the issue.  Local suppliers are used where possible, providing they meet
value for money criteria.

As a Trust, we have a range of customers for both the schools and through our extensive community
offer. Where possible invoices are issued by email and we request that payments are made by BACS
rather than other methods of payment.  Communication is by phone, email or in person, with the aim
of responding to questions within 24 hours.

The Trust has adapted during Covid-19 enabling the school to continue to operate via people working
from home and having access to systems required to undertake their roles and continue to work.
Further adaptations have taken place by holding meetings remotely for a variety of aspects such as
recruitment and monitoring the building progress of Deer Park School.  This has enabled engagement to
continue despite the restrictions imposed by Covid-19.

Information for parents and students is communicated by email and is available on the website.  During
lockdown and the enforced school closure daily updates were communicated to parents and students
via email and the website to maintain clear lines of communication and sharing of essential
information.

Covid-19
As a result of Covid-19, networks which the Trust is part of (such as partnership of primary schools,
business managers etc.) were not able to meet face to face and this initially impacted on the sharing of
information.  The process was quickly adapted and meetings were conducted virtually to ensure
continued support and sharing of best practise.

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims
The principal activity of WAT for the year ended 31 August 2021 was to provide education for students
with a range of abilities between the ages of 4 and 16.  WAT continues to work to establish a new
secondary school in the locality to provide extra places to meet basic need.

WAT’s object is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing
and developing a School offering a broad and balanced curriculum.
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Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The main objectives of WAT during the year were:

to ensure the curriculum continues to meet the needs of all students and all students achieve
their full potential
to deliver consistent high standards of learning and teaching through effective partnerships and
outreach provision
develop further the School’s wider community role and contribution to opportunities for our
stakeholders in our immediate community, particularly in the arts and sport.
to provide value for money for funds expended- to comply with statutory and curriculum
requirements
to conduct Academy Trust business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity,
probity and openness
to comply with all statutory and curriculum requirements

Wildern School has an excellent record of academic success and aims to offer opportunities to students
through the curriculum and extracurricular activities ranging from day trips to the theatre, museums
and beaches to support curriculum study to residential trips nationally and internationally. A wide
range of trips and activities are usually offered to give all students the opportunity to participate during
their time at Wildern School. This was impacted during 2020/21 by Covid-19 and all trips were
cancelled.  These will be re-introduced as soon as possible once restrictions are lifted.

To ensure standards are continually challenged Wildern School operates a programme of rigorous
monitoring which includes lesson observations, visits from an external consultant and undertaking of
continual analysis of data to ensure students achieve their potential.

Following exam results in the summer, Trustees are invited to two days of review during the autumn
term with Heads of Departments looking in detail at outcomes and actions for the future. This involves
in depth scrutiny of data with appropriate challenges and also offers an opportunity to celebrate
successful outcomes. Despite the changes due to Covid-19 and no external exams being sat the review
days took place in October 2020 to review the outcomes for the students based on the Centre Assessed
Grades.  The same process will happen in October 2021.

During the year, curriculum reports are presented to Trustees, and there are usually two visits per year
to all departments, this is undertaken by individual Trustees/Governors who are allocated specific
departments.  This was not possible due to Covid-19.

Boorley Park Primary School opened in September 2019 with the aim of providing all pupils an
exceptional education, preparing them to make a difference now and in their futures.  The children are
taught to set high expectations for themselves and the school equips them with the skills they need to
meet these goals.  The school will continue to grow year on year as the surrounding development grows
and further houses are built.
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Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)
Wildern Partnership SCITT is in its 6th year and successfully delivers the PGCE programme at Masters
Level for both primary and secondary.  The SCITT offers a high quality programme with strong
partnership relationships and large numbers of trainees achieving Grade 1 QTS.  In the year to 31
August 2021, 41 trainees achieved QTS – 32 Secondary and 9 Primary. They have all secured
employment. During the year there were 2 withdrawals and 2 interrupts.  1 of these students is
planning to return during the year 21/22.

The SCITT enables WAT to recruit well trained NQTs.  The SCITT will continue to aim to recruit high
quality trainees and to focus on the retention and attainment of trainees.

The school continues to recruit high quality professionals despite national recruitment challenges.  All
leadership appointments involve Trustee participation.

 For the year to 31 August 2022 the SCITT currently has 28 trainees, 16 Secondary and 12 Primary.

Wildern Leisure Centre and the D@rt Centre provide a wide range of activities for members of the local
community.  These include sport related usage in the Leisure Centre and art based activities in the D@rt
Centre including choir, book club and monthly film nights.  The courses and activities offered are
reviewed regularly and new opportunities are offered.

Public Benefit
In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

WAT aims to advance for the public benefit education, both locally and nationally.

WAT admitted an extra tutor group in Year 7 in 2015, 2017, 2018 and 2019 to meet the demand and
basic need locally. It is not expected that the extra tutor group will be required in future as Deer Park
opened on 1 September 2021.

Wildern School site offers extensive community provision for both adults and children through the
Leisure and D@rt Centre, where membership and a variety of courses and activities suitable for a range
of ages are offered.

The Wildern SCITT provides newly qualified teachers for primary, secondary and special schools in the
local area.
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Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance
For Wildern School the results for 2020/21 were based on Centre Assessed Grades as no external exams
were taken due to COVID-19.  They were based on a vigorous process that was followed by all staff.
There was a clear protocol all schools were required to follow which involved the use of clear evidence
to award each student's final grade. This was then internally moderated by all departments and then
reviewed by SLT.  Considerable work and cross checking was undertaken, which included ranking each
child as required by the DfE.

The process is completely different to previous years and we can therefore not make comparisons with
previous years.  There will be no league tables published this year.

Key headline results:
85% of all students achieved Grades 4 to 9 in English and Maths
60% of all students achieved Grades 5 to 9 in English and Maths
35% of all GCSE and GCSE-equivalent grades were Grades 7 to 9
56% of students were entered for EBacc
46% of all students achieved standard (Grades 4+) EBacc passes
37% of all students achieved strong (Grades 5+) Ebacc passes
EBacc Average Point Score = 5.27
Attainment 8 = 56.69
Wildern School was graded as outstanding in 2012 (the School’s last inspection)

Focus Groups:
There are six focus groups within the student leadership structure at the school. We have focus groups
that represent the student body for:

Mind, Body & Soul
Rights Respecting Schools
Eco Leaders
E-Safety Leaders
Googlers
Careers Focus Group

These are well attended weekly during a tutor time and members from each focus group represent
their group in meetings with senior leaders. They drive their particular strand in projects, school issues
and through student voice. They have collaborated on issues like school environment, diversity in
school, the Big Clean, Well-being week, Eco Projects, Online and Google advice and guidance for
students and staff and supported many school events.

They work in conjunction with the other student leadership teams, Transition, Diversity, learning and
School leaders to ensure there is consistent representation and leadership in the student body and that
student voice is heard and actioned.
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Achievements and Performance (continued)
Celebration of Achievement
Wildern School recognises, acknowledges and celebrates student success through events such as
Wildern Colours, Tech Fest and the annual Awards Evening.

School Production
Due to COVID-19 there was no production in October 2020.  There is a production planned for October
2021.  The annual production has always been a sell out and is performed in the professional Berry
Theatre. The productions involve many students and staff and an incredible amount of hard work out of
school hours.  Students not only perform on the stage but help with all aspects of the production. This
has led to a number of students going to study courses such as BTEC Technical Theatre and Event
Management and secure employment in this field.

Charity Fundraising
The school raises money for a variety of charities through the year holding events such as Non Uniform
Days and cake sales.  Amongst the charities that have benefited are Children in Need, Macmillan, Jeans
for Genes, as well as smaller local charities that are nominated by Students, such as Abbie’s Heroes.

The Learning Hub
Support for more vulnerable students is provided via the Learning Hub – a separate building on the
edge of the school site with its own garden area.  A variety of interventions are offered including ELSA
support, Counsellor, 1 to 1 sessions and the school dog, Rufus, who is used to encourage attendance in
identified students, work with social situations and personal space. The Learning Hub is an integral part
of the school.

ETC Learning Hub
The ETC Learning Hub has continued to work with partners locally to improve outcomes for all students,
to develop pedagogical approaches through evidence based learning and to provide learning
opportunities for leaders to support professional development from initial teacher training through to
system leadership.

Wildern colleagues have continued to be involved in work of the ETC and to benefit from the courses
offered.

There have however, been changes to the Teaching School model and so as of September 2021 Wildern
will no longer be a teaching school as the model has been replaced nationally with central teaching
school Hubs, Wildern did not wish to become one of these. The Trust will however, continue to offer
professional learning across the Trust and other partner schools.



Wildern Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report

13

Achievements and Performance (continued)
SCITT
In 2016/17 the SCITT gained an Ofsted Outstanding grading in its first inspection, with many strengths
cited such as quality of training, coherence of the programme, quality assurance of all aspects of the
programme, school partner relationships and mentor professional learning.  There were 41 trainees
who completed the course in 2020/21.  These trainees have all secured employment.

The SCITT is operating in a very competitive market and strategic discussions are taking place to secure
longevity and future proofing of the SCITT with regard to staffing and generating more trainees.  There
are 28 trainees recruited for 2021/22. There is currently a national consultation with regards to SCITTs
nationally and what changes may happen for 2023.

The SCITT programme leader and administration team were part of a DfE research study and pilot for
the new application process which was in place for 20/21 entrants.

Covid-19 impact
Following the enforced closure of both schools in March 2020 remote teaching was introduced for all
students and was used as necessary during the year ending 31 August 2021.  This presented challenges
which were met with a high level of professionalism and practicality by all staff and supported by
students and their parents.

Teaching and learning in both schools needed to be adapted due to control measures. This was most
notable in practical subjects due to additional steps having to be in place to reduce transmission such as
vigorous cleaning and quarantining equipment.  This meant students took part in science practical
experiments less often and some practical lessons were not possible at all.  Food practical lessons were
less frequent and students were required to provide their own aprons to be able to use practical
resources in Art and Design and Technology.  Some art materials were not used in KS3 lessons due to
quarantine requirements.

Uniform expectations were adapted so students could attend school in their PE or Dance kit to enable
them to take part in practical lessons.  In PE, practical sports fixtures did not take place and there were
limitations on the sports and activities that could be studied.

In classroom based lessons, students were still taught in specialist rooms but were sat in rows to
minimise transmission as per DfE guidance. This impacted the collaborative learning opportunities and
discussions in the classrooms. Students wearing masks also had an impact on this and teachers worked
hard to find alternative ways for collaboration, through online resources for example.
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Achievements and Performance (continued)
For students and staff at Wildern School the lack of external exams in Year 11 for the second year
caused both anxiety and extra work.  Robust careers support was in place and accessible to all students
before, on, and after results day. In the absence of formal examinations all school were asked to submit
Centre Assessed Grades for each student. There were clear guidelines and expectations set down.  At
Wildern this process was followed robustly and with integrity. The final outcomes were inline largely
with historical data although direct comparisons have not and should not be applied this year.

For Wildern School there was a major loss of catering income with the reduction in the number of
students in school due to isolating and the year group bubbles which led to some students having to eat
at outlets which were not able to sell the full range of food due to limited size.  In addition, the school
suffered the loss of community income due to reduced numbers and restrictions over activities such as
swimming and group sports. There was a gradual re-opening but this was impacted by the continuing
restrictions that were in place.

As with Wildern, pupils at Boorley Park have all had their education disrupted by COVID-19, missing key
periods of their early education when expert teacher guidance is needed to help them to develop their
learning skills for later life. Additional intervention has been put in place to help pupils to catch up and
the curriculum has been adapted to ensure that pupils quickly catch up with learning that was lost.
Control measures, such as year group bubbles, meant that pupils have also missed out on social aspects
of their education and opportunities to mix with their peers and perform to audiences. Opportunities
for these have been planned for this year.

Both schools had to cancel trips and visits but there are plans to re-introduce these as soon as it is safe
to travel and plan again.  There is an awareness that children have missed out on opportunities.

The Trust has provided support and guidance to staff who were anxious about working in school during
Covid-19 with all students back.  Detailed risk assessments were prepared and reviewed and updated
fortnightly. All staff were made aware of who to ask if they had any concerns.

The issue of Free School Meal vouchers to those isolating created extra work, as did the issue of
vouchers over the holidays.  This was made worse at times by the late notice of the introduction of the
schemes.

The cost to the Trust of making both school sites Covid-19 secure have been high, with the purchase of
items including hand sanitiser, wipes, extra cleaning materials and plastic for screens. Wildern School
has employed an extra member of staff to ensure the school is kept clean during the day.  There is also
an issue with the supply of these products and increasing costs due to the increased demand. These
costs have been paid by the schools and are not able to be claimed back from the DfE.
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Achievements and Performance (continued)
Capital Projects
The lack of capital funding restricted work undertaken at Wildern School, however there was capital
investment in refurbishing swimming pool changing rooms in the Leisure Centre to coincide with the
work on the replacement roof for the main swimming pool funded in total by Eastleigh Borough
Council.

Some of the servers were replaced during the year and emergency capital works were undertaken
following flooding which damaged carpets and corridors.

We were unsuccessful with our CIF bid but are working with Consultants this year in order to submit a
bid that is successful once the window opens.

Salix Funding was awarded in July 2017 to provide a lighting upgrade across the site.  The work started
in October 2017 and was completed early in 2018.  This is reducing our electricity bills and gives
improved levels of lighting in the school.

There was no capital work undertaken at Boorley Park Primary as it is a new build school and still under
warranty.

Key Performance Indicators
WAT considers a range of performance indicators, including financial, results and well-being.

WAT ensures value for money is achieved and students receive the full benefit from the in-year funding
allocation. A costed value for money report is presented and discussed at each Finance meeting. In
addition, Trustees discuss financial data benchmarking at Finance meetings where Wildern’s
expenditure is compared with other Schools both locally and nationally.  All areas of expenditure are
reviewed.

At all Finance meetings, the Budget for the year is compared with the actual for the period and any
changes are explained.  The Budget is reviewed during the year, in light of any changes that may have
occurred.

Pupil numbers are crucial due to the funding attached to each pupil.  At Wildern numbers are constant
and Year 7 is always oversubscribed. Boorley Park is full in Year 1 as at 1 September 2020, with a
waiting list and has 44 pupils in Year R as at 1 September 2020.  In future years the intake will be 60
pupils per year.  The slowdown in house building due to Covid-19 impacted numbers for the 1
September 2020 intake.

From 1 September 2015 Wildern School has agreed, following a request from Hampshire County
Council to take an extra form in year 7 when required for the next 4 years to address the basic need
locally for places.  A consultation will take place to reduce the Pupil Admission Numbers at Wildern
School from 1 September 2021 when Deer Park School opens.
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Key Performance Indicators (continued)
Wildern’s student numbers were as follows:

2020/21 1930
2019/20 1907
2018/19 1904
2017/18 1903
2016/17 1878
2015/16 1884
2014/15 1856
2013/14 1856
2012/13 1860
2011/12 1853

Wildern’s target for attendance is 95% or above and all attendance data is monitored.  Any concerns
are followed up by Student Services.

The Key Performance Indicators are varied but have the underlying aim of offering an outstanding
experience to all students to ensure they achieve their full potential.

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.
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Promoting the success of the company
Under section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006, directors of a company must act in a way
most likely to promote the success of the company, and in doing so must have regard to:

The likely consequences of any decision in the long term
The interests of the company’s employees
The need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
The impact of the company’s operation on the community and the environment
The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business
conduct
The need to act fairly between members of the company

Wildern Academy Trust works to adopt all these principles in the way that it operates.  The aim of the
Trust is to support the children and community in which it operates.  As a result of this vision, the Trust
has worked with the Department for Education and Hampshire County Council to build a new
secondary school which opened in September 2021 with 124 students.  In line with this vision to serve
the community, Boorley Park Primary opened in 2019.  The decision to open these schools supports the
long term aims of the Trust to provide a high quality of education and achievement for all students.

Work is being undertaken to develop sports facilities at Deer Park which will be open to the public as
well as the school.  The Trust works hard to build links with the community in which it operates its three
schools.

The opening of the new schools offers opportunities to staff for progression and promotion. The Trust
endeavours to look after the wellbeing of its staff by offering benefits such as membership of Leisure
facilities, cycle to work scheme and free parking.

The Trust works with all stakeholders – including suppliers, parents, students, employees, the local
community, the local authority and Department for Education to develop strong, professional working
relationships.

The Trust hopes that its broad and inclusive approach to decision making and its high standards of
governance and operational practice will help to ensure a reputation for high standards of business
conduct.
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Financial Review
The majority of WAT’s income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of
which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31
August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial
Activities.

Other income is payment for school trips and some income is generated by staff at Wildern School
undertaking outreach work supporting other schools and students.  The cancellation of trips due to
Covid-19 has meant limited trip income this year and with no trips currently planned the trip income for
21/22 is likely to be very low. Limited outreach support work has taken place.

The Community based activities generate income which comes from membership, courses and lettings
of the facilities. This was severely impacted this year due to both the closure of the main swimming
pool for a roof replacement and COVID-19 closures and restrictions which resulted in reduced numbers
able to use the facilities and limits on hiring of the facilities.

Catering income was impacted by the restrictions placed on the school due to Covid-19 which meant
lower numbers in school and restrictions on the areas students were allowed to purchase food from in
order to remain in bubbles.  This meant some areas had reduced selections of food for sale.  Students
having to isolate contributed to loss of income as well.

WAT received additional Covid funding from the local authority to provide free school meal vouchers
during the holiday for FSM students and vulnerable students.

Funding was also received to cover the costs incurred in the mass testing of all 1930 students - the costs
we incurred in delivering this included staffing, protective screens, waste bins, mirrors, torches and
other items required in the set-up of the sterile testing centre.

Income was received to support the Teaching School from the Department for Education.

Funds were also received from the DfE for the trainees in the SCITT, including School Direct Trainees.
Student loan income was paid for some of the SCITT trainees.

The principal source of funding for the period to 31 August 2021 was ESFA funding of £11,308,351, with
expenditure against this income of £10,796,114.

This expenditure was used to support the key aims of WAT in providing education for students aged 4
to 16 and enhancing their opportunities. Funding was used for staffing and resources to deliver the
curriculum and in maintenance of the site and buildings.  The lack of increase in funding, despite
increasing costs, including statutory increases in NI and pension contributions has limited the work we
can undertake to the buildings on site and has limited the amount we have been able to spend on all
resources and in particular IT resources. In all financial transactions best value was considered when
making decisions.
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Reserves Policy
The balance of unrestricted funds of approx. £1m came from a transfer of funds from Hampshire
County Council on conversion to Academy status and income earned during the period since
conversion.  These funds have been held for capital build projects to improve the facilities at Wildern
School and further enhance teaching and learning and opportunities for our students.  The funds that
were transferred on conversion arose as a result of outreach work undertaken by Wildern School in
supporting other Schools to raise standards and opportunities for their students.

On conversion to Academy status, Wildern School inherited a deficit on the Local Government Pension
Scheme.  An FRS disclosure as at 31 August 2021 has been obtained. Repayments of the deficit will
continue to be made monthly and provision has been made for this in the budget.

Trustees have clearly understood in recent years that some of the reserves would be required to meet a
shortfall in the budget due to statutory increases in costs such as Pension Contributions and NI, which
have not been funded.  This shortfall will continue for the next four years at least based on current
predictions, unless there are significant changes to the level of funding received.  It was hoped that the
National Funding Formula would alleviate some of the pressure but the level of funding we have
received has not realised that hope.

Trustees will continue to look at opportunities to bid for capital funding to enhance the teaching and
learning environment at Wildern.

The level of Reserves held is advised to and reviewed by Trustees.

The total funds held are:
Unrestricted (free) reserves of £1,024,502 (2020: £1,084,950)
A restricted fixed asset fund of £57,942,504 (2020: £32,329,856), which can only be realised
through disposal of tangible fixed assets
A pension deficit of £6,240,000 (2020: £5,190,000)
Other restricted funds of £374,336 (2020: £55,688)
Total funds of £53,101,342 (2020: £28,280,494)

Investment Policy
Lloyds Bank is the Trust’s banker and the Trust holds seven current accounts.  The current accounts are
for School, Trips, Community, Deposit, Student Leasing, Boorley Park Primary and Deer Park Secondary.
All accounts are interest bearing, however the amount of interest earned is very low, due to current
low interest rates and the low risk investment policy adopted.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Wildern School has a risk management strategy that ensures the School complies with risk
management best practise and sets out the current processes and responsibilities for risk management
within the School.  The Risk Register highlights the key risks facing the School and is a standing item on
the Finance Committee agenda, where the Committee monitor the identification and mitigation of risk
within the School.  Any perceived new or increased risk is reported to Finance with a summary of action
taken. A summary of perceived key risks is presented at each Finance Committee meeting.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks that Wildern School is exposed to:
Covid-19
Financial
Staff recruitment
Reputation
Fraud and mismanagement of funds
Health and Safety

Covid-19
Covid-19 had a major impact on WAT in the year to 31 August 2021 and will continue to do so in
2021/22.  The risks faced include schools being closed and the consequent impact on education, illness
of staff, students and families, anxiety impacting on staff, students, parents, the community and all
involved with the schools.

For Wildern School the loss of income that started in March 2020 continued into 20/21 for catering and
community activities.  The Trust was proactive in looking at how activities could be run at reduced
capacity while complying with and reacting to changing requirements.  The Community Management
Team restructured their offer to make as many activities available within the guidelines as possible.
Catering was under constant review during the year as we followed guidelines and were able to
continue to provide food to our students and staff. The range of offer has been much reduced eg the
salad bar was not in use for hygiene reasons and in order to comply with restrictions re social
distancing.

A review of the online educational offer during lockdown was very successful and was extensively
reviewed on the schools’ return and enabled each subject to continue to offer online learning for all
year groups as required while students were in quarantine and having to self-isolate.

Provisions have been put into place on the school site to minimise risk of infection with enhanced levels
of cleaning, one way systems etc. An additional cleaner has been employed to work during the school
day cleaning communal areas and touch points.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
At Boorley Park the risks to staff, pupils and families remain the same as at Wildern School.  A further
concern for this school is the reduction in house building and sales which could impact on numbers
applying in future years.  The danger of infection is being mitigated by enhanced levels of cleaning.
Communication between the school and parents is robust ensuring everyone is aware of restrictions
and requirements.

The Trust was aware that there was a risk to the practical completion of Deer Park School due to Covid-
19.  This proved unfounded and the school was handed to the Trust on 12 July 2021.  There followed a
period of hectic activity to ensure the school was ready and fully resourced for the new academic year
in September 2021.  The first cohort of 124 students started on 2 September 2021.

For the Trust there were additional costs which will not be funded related to Covid-19.  These include
additional PPE requirements, extra cleaning and supply costs if absence levels rise.   The Trust will
purchase the necessary equipment to ensure that the site is safe and able to open while complying with
Government guidelines.

Financial
WAT relies on Government funding and is facing a very difficult future financially due to the loss of
discretionary funding that used to be available and the lack of increase in GAG funding despite
increasing statutory costs, such as NI, Teachers’ Pension contributions, LGPS deficit as well as National
Living Wage and Apprenticeship Levy. The financial situation is being monitored carefully and the
budget for the year 2021/22 has been set taking the known increases into consideration. It was hoped
that the National Funding Formula would reduce the financial pressure but this has not happened due
to the continued low level of funding received by Hampshire County Council and distributed via the
National Funding Formula. Trustees are aware that Wildern will continue to need to draw on its
reserves in the future but they do not want to see the opportunities offered to students reduced.
Staffing will be monitored carefully and savings made where possible.

Trustees are concerned about the level of reduction in budget allocation since conversion in April 2011.

There is no risk at the moment from falling numbers and turbulence.  It is not expected there will be a
risk in the foreseeable future taking into account the information available from the Local Authority
(LA) on pupil numbers, but this will continue to be monitored.  The opening of Deer Park School in
September 21 is expected to relieve the pressure on student numbers at Wildern School.  It is intended
to reduce the PAN at Wildern to 12 forms of entry per year group.

Boorley Park Primary will offer two forms of entry per year group and based on LA predictions will fill.
There is a risk due to the impact of Covid-19 and slowdown in the housing market and economic
conditions that numbers will not meet the prediction due to the school’s location on a new housing
development.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Additional Covid-19 funding has been used to support pupils at Boorley Park and students at Wildern
School in a variety of ways to address the potential gaps in learning.

At Boorley Park the Covid-19 catch up funding has been used to support the following interventions:
Purchase of additional resources for continuous provision eg building blocks and manipulative
resources for outdoor provision
Purchase of benchmarking assessment tools - PM Benchmark Literacy to support accurate
assessment
Pupil needed additional support in moving in to Year 1 as they had not been able to meet their
teachers so welcome packs and printed resources were produced.

At Wildern School the Covid-19 catch up funding has been used to support in the core subjects to
address potential gaps due to home learning.  The interventions included:

Re-launch of whole school reading in tutor time.
Re-launch of whole school reading initiative using external speaker for whole staff professional
learning
Re-launch of reading safari in KS3 through English lessons and the Library school reading
initiative. Prizes and certificates awarded from bronze through to diamond award.
Purchase of newly published books for Library to encourage and promote reading throughout
all year groups
Author visit to inspire students to be able to improve their creative writing including staff time
to write a new unit for scheme of work to build on visit.
Purchase Times Table Rockstars app subscription for 1 year for all students in year 8
Purchase Hegarty Learning subscription for all students, provide staff training time and
resources
Creation of resources in Year 7 scheme of work to provide opportunities for students to apply
knowledge from KS2 in order to deepen their understanding

Staff Recruitment
There is a risk WAT will not be able to recruit or retain quality staff. The SCITT enables the Trust to
ensure staff recruited from the trainees are of a high quality and understand the expectations and
requirements of the School.  By continuing to obtain very good exam results, it is hoped staff will be
encouraged to continue to apply to Wildern School.

Safer Recruitments procedures are followed strictly to minimise the risk of employing someone
unsuitable to work in a School.

There is a risk that staffing at Wildern School will be impacted with the opening of Deer Park School and
the need for more staff year on year – in order to avoid this, recruitment will begin early for the new
school and there are comprehensive staffing plans in place to address this risk.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
WAT will continue to aim to recruit highly effective staff, both teachers and non-teaching staff for the
Trust. As the two new schools grow there will be a need for significant recruitment each year.

Reputation
There is a low risk to the Trust from lack of applications for places but this is unlikely due to the
predicted numbers provided by the Local Authority. Open days are held during the year to enable the
public and prospective parents to view the Schools.  For the year 2021/22 open days for all three
schools will be held face to face enabling prospective parents and students to visit the schools and meet
staff.

Fraud and Mismanagement of funds
In order to minimise the risk of fraud and mismanagement, Wildern School has two Internal Scrutiny
visits during the year, an annual audit, twice termly reports to the Finance Committee, and a system of
Internal Financial Control. Internal Financial controls have been introduced and the Trust Board and
Finance Committee carry out reviews during their meetings of areas such as expenditure against
budget, organisation of roles within the School and staffing and review of costs and services provided.
Trustees are provided with budget updates half termly in advance of meetings with a report explaining
any deviation from Budget- these are then more fully explained at the meeting.

Health and Safety
Due to the importance of robust Health and Safety systems, WAT employed an Estates Manager during
20/21 to ensure compliance and good practice across the Trust.  This role is key to the structure of the
Trust.

The Trustees have implemented systems to assess risk in operational areas such as Health and Safety
and Finance. Health and Safety is monitored via the Health and Safety Trustee who meets with the
Estates Manager regularly and WAT purchases a Service Level Agreement with a Health and Safety
Company to provide support and guidance as well as conducting an audit to illustrate areas for
development.

WAT has RPA cover in place and has taken out additional insurance for areas such as Vehicle and
Engineering Inspections to ensure protection for all known risks.

A Risk Management report was undertaken by Willis Risk Management on Wildern School in 2019 and
we achieved a blue rating.  Suggestions and recommendations in the report have been acted on as
required.

All systems are constantly reviewed and in order to minimise risk a system of internal financial controls
have been introduced and an external Auditor has been appointed to carry out Internal Scrutiny visits
and report to the Trust.  The accounts for the period to 31 August 2021 were audited by Hopper
Williams & Bell Limited.
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Fundraising
As part of our work to develop our students and support our community WAT undertakes fundraising
activities during the year to raise funds to donate to local, national and international charities.  Funds
are raised through donations for non-uniform days and activities such as cake sales on these days.  We
support Jeans for Genes day which links to our Science Curriculum and also Comic Relief each year.  In
addition, other charities are chosen by students in response to their experiences eg a charity they know
of due to family illness or in response to a natural disaster.  WAT undertakes all fundraising by itself,
with the help of students, their families and staff.  We confirm that when fundraising:

No unsolicited approaches are made to members of the public.
No commercial participators are used.
No regularity schemes or standards are applicable.
No complaints were made to the Academy Trust during the year.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
Breakdown of energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh):
Energy type 2020/21 2019/20
Mandatory requirements:
Gas 3,002,600 2,113,634
Purchased electricity from the grid 1,089,890 938,633
Transport fuel 559 6,221
Total energy (mandatory) 4,093,050 3,058,488
Voluntary requirements:
Consumed electricity from on-site renewable sources 68,652 81,169
Total energy (voluntary) 68,652 81,169
Total energy (mandatory & voluntary) 4,161,702 3,139,657

Breakdown of emissions associated with the reported energy use (tCO e):
Emission source 2020/21 2019/20
Mandatory requirements:
Scope 1
Natural gas 550 388.6
Transport - Company owned vehicles (mini-buses) 0 1.3
Scope 2
Purchased electricity (location-based) 231.4 218.8
Scope 3
Transport – Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 0.1 0.1
Total gross emissions (mandatory) 781.5 608.9
Intensity ratios (mandatory emissions only)
Tonnes of CO2e per pupil 0.403 0.313
Voluntary requirements:
Scope 1
Consumed electricity from on-site renewable sources 0 0
Total gross emissions (voluntary) 0 0
Total gross emissions (mandatory & voluntary) 781.5 608.9

Quantification and reporting methodology
The 2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) were followed. The 2021 UK Government GHG
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting were used in emission calculations. The report has been
reviewed independently by Briar Consulting Engineers Limited.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (continued)
The electricity and gas consumption has been compiled from invoice records with minimal pro rata
values added to align to the reporting period. Minibus mileage has been compiled from invoice records.
Mileage claims were used to calculate energy use and emissions associated with grey fleet. On site
renewable solar photovoltaic electricity is considered accurate from AMR readings. Exported energy is
not measured. Generally gross calorific values were used except for grey fleet mileage energy
calculations as per Government GHG Conversion Factors.

The associated emissions are divided into mandatory and voluntary emissions according to the 2018
Regulations, then further divided into the direct combustion of fuels and the operation of facilities
(scope 1), indirect emissions from purchased electricity (scope 2) and further indirect emissions that
occur as a consequence of Trust activities (scope 3).

Intensity ratio
The primary intensity ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e (mandatory emissions) per
pupil, which is the recommended ratio for the sector for consistency and comparability. Pupil numbers
are based on the autumn 2020 Census.

Energy efficiency action during current financial year
As expected, energy consumption was higher this year due to schools needing to have windows open
for ventilation as part of their COVID-19 response.  This, coupled with reduced occupancy in the
previous year due to the national lockdowns, has resulted in an increase in the carbon intensity ratio.

The Trust is committed to reducing longer term emissions and this year has seen the implementation of
numerous energy efficiency measures, some of which include:

The programmers have been adjusted to ensure heating is only switched on when required and
the level of heating has also been reduced
Energy audits have been carried out and the Trust are considering all recommendations and
actively applying for bids for funding

Prior to the current financial year, several projects have been implemented to reduce energy use and
carbon emissions, including:

The installation of solar PV panels at Wildern School
LED lights installed across both sites
Implementation of video conferencing for staff and board meetings, reducing the need for
travel to and between sites
A new travel plan which seeks to reduce staff and pupil car travel to work, encouraging walking
and cycling
Meat free Mondays to reduce carbon emissions
Implementation of a Trust wide Eco-group, educating pupils and staff on ways they can reduce
their carbon emissions.
New high efficiency boilers installed
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Plans for Future Periods
WAT is a progressive Trust and in order to continue to move forward will always be looking to set
challenging and ambitious targets. Our aims and objectives will always be driven by the need to provide
quality Teaching and Learning which will afford our students the best possible opportunity for their
future. Our key priorities are set in the School Improvement Plans which are reviewed annually and
then re-written every two years. In the coming year we would expect to achieve levels of exam success
for Wildern School students as in previous years.  We are aware that Covid-19 could impact the exams
again in 2022.

The ETC will continue to work with partners and the new Teaching School Hub which will continue to
evolve over the next year. This will involve investment in staff training and staffing capacity to deliver
some of the key priorities in the action plan and supporting the new model moving forward.

In September 2016 Wildern School was successful in bidding to open a secondary free school- Deer Park
School based on basic need requirements locally.  WAT has worked with Hampshire County Council to
develop the design of the school and building started on the site in Woodhouse Lane in November
2019.  The school was handed to the Trust on 12 July 2021 and the Trust will continue work to establish
a successful school.  We believe based on HCC student numbers predictions that there is sufficient
demand in the local area to ensure that both Deer Park and Wildern will be full.  Deer Park will grow
year on year from Year 7.

Boorley Park Primary School opened in September 2020 and has 129 pupils as at 1 September 2021.
Numbers have been impacted by Covid-19 and reduced house sales but given the development in the
area we have no doubt that the school will fill and there will eventually be a need to extend.  Provision
for this was included in the original design to minimise disruption to an existing school.

Site developments to support curriculum change and innovation are a focus and we are continuing to
explore new opportunities and curriculum offer for our students in light of national changes.   We are
continually looking to improve the learning environment for our students.  This will include a strategic
review of the curriculum offer and potential to provide different applied learning courses.

The SCITT will continue to aim to recruit high quality trainees and will focus in 2021/22 on retention and
attainment of core secondary trainees, completion rates looking at resilience and workload.  The SCITT
programme leader is a member of a national working group to support attainment of trainee teachers
with cited/uncited mental health. This year the outcome of the market review will give a clear
indication on where the future of the SCITT is moving forward.
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Plans for Future Periods (continued)
Catering was taken in house in September 2015 and we continue to work to enhance the serving and
eating areas for all students as well as ensuring high quality food is available for all staff and students.
Funding from HCC has enabled us to provide additional covered seating areas and an additional food
serving outlet.  Opportunities to expand the service, for example to Community Groups and local
schools will be investigated. Wildern School will try to source capital funding to develop the kitchen and
outlets for serving.  During the year, a take away service for Community users at the weekend has been
established, enabling visitors to buy drinks and snack food.  There are plans to extend this and open a
cafe in the Dart Centre offering homemade cakes and drinks.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others
No funds are held on behalf of others.

Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware
the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees,
as the company directors, on 13 December 2021 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

G Lane
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of Responsibility
As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Wildern Academy Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
Competency Framework for Governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Head Teacher, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it
in the funding agreement between Wildern Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and
in the Statement of Trustees responsibilities.  The Trust Board met six times during the year. In addition,
the Chairs of Committees, the Full Board Chair and the Executive Head Teacher meet at the beginning
of each term.  Additional meetings take place if required.  Attendance during the year at these meetings
was as follows:

Trust Board Meetings attended Out of a possible
Katie Griffin 1 1
Tony Jardine 6 6
Glenda Lane (Chair) 6 6
Mary-Lou Litton (Accounting Officer) 6 6
Sarah Martin 5 6
Ruth Saw 6 6
Liam Thomas 5 5
Karen Wigley 6 6
Jonathan Williams 6 6

Finance Committee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Katie Griffin 2 2
Glenda Lane 6 6
Mary-Lou Litton (Accounting Officer) 6 6
Sarah Martin 3 6
Ruth Saw 6 6
Liam Thomas 5 6
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Governance (continued)
The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Trust Board. Its purpose is to ensure sound
management of the Academy’s finances and resources, including financial planning, monitoring and
probity.  The Finance Committee met six times during the year.

Boorley Park Local Governing Body Meetings attended Out of a possible
Rosemary Dawson-Edwards 6 6
Neil Freeman 5 6
Jenny Gregory 5 6
Matthew Jones 6 6
Sian Ozanne 5 6
Ruth Saw 5 6
Tamsin Sillars 6 6
Richard Sims 5 6

Wildern School Local Governing Body Meetings attended Out of a possible
Nicola Addis 6 6
David Bull 6 6
Tom Hastings 5 5
Mark Heath 2 2
Anthony Jardine 6 6
Brett Milburn 1 1
Ceri Oakley 6 6
Karen Wigley 5 5

The main challenge for the Trust Board continues to be the financial situation caused by increasing
costs such as pay rises, National Insurance and the Local Government Pension scheme deficit which are
not being funded by the Government. This remains a concern going forward given the level of school
funding.

The impact of Covid-19 meant that meetings were held virtually rather than face to face.  Amendments
have been made to the Articles to allow this to happen if necessary for Members' General Meetings and
Annual General Meetings, as well as Trustee Board meetings.

A further change to the Articles has been made to allow for minutes to be signed electronically if
required.

The Trust Board considered the impact on their operation having to meet virtually and believe the
outcomes were very good, attendees were engaged and all information was effectively shared, leading
to strong governance during the period.  This method of operation ensured high levels of attendance at
all meetings, higher than some face to face meetings in previous years.
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Review of Value for Money
As Accounting Officer the Executive Head Teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy
Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value
for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer
resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for
the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Reviewing all areas of staffing and considering requirements when staff leave.  As a result of
not replacing roles like for like savings have been made.
Replacement phone system – original amount reduced by 6k following negotiations.
Continued use of RPA rather than commercial insurance providers
Upgrade of hard disk/RAM in computers in IT suites instead of replacing machines
Energy audit to identify savings and improve our carbon footprint
Purchasing in bulk for items where possible eg keyboards
New confidential shredding service which offers better value for money
School wide subscription purchases rather than department by department

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in Wildern Academy Trust for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September
2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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The Risk and Control Framework
The Academy Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
identification and management of risks

In addition, the Trustees have considered the guidance for Trustees of public listed companies
contained within the Turnbull Report. They believe that although it is not mandatory for WAT it should,
as a publicly funded Body, adopt these guidelines as best practice. Accordingly, they have set policies
on internal controls which cover the following:

the type of risks WAT faces
the level of risks which they regard as acceptable
the likelihood of the risks materialising
WAT’s ability to reduce the incidence and impact on the schools’ operations of risks that do
materialise
the costs of operating particular controls relative to the benefits obtained

The Trust has:
clarified the responsibility of the Management Team to implement the Trustees’ policies and to
identify and evaluate risks for the Trustees’ consideration
explained to employees that they have responsibility for internal control as part of their
accountability for achieving objectives;
embedded the control system in WAT’s operations so that it becomes part of the culture of
WAT
developed systems to respond quickly to evolving risks arising from factors within WAT and to
changes in the external environment
included procedures for reporting failings immediately to appropriate levels of management
and the Trustees together with details of corrective action being undertaken.

The Trustees have implemented systems to assess risk in operational areas such as Health and Safety
and Finance. Health and Safety is monitored via the Health and Safety Trustee who meets with the
Estates Manager regularly and WAT has purchased a Service Level Agreement with a Health and Safety
Company to provide support and guidance as well as conducting an audit to illustrate areas for
development.
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The Risk and Control Framework (continued)
The Trustees have considered the need for a specific internal audit function and have decided not to
appoint an internal auditor. However, the Trustees have appointed James Cowper Kreston to perform
Internal Scrutiny checks during the year and to give advice on financial matters as required. These
checks are performed on a termly basis and a report made to the Trust Board on the operation of the
systems of control and on the discharge of the Trust Board’s financial responsibilities.  No material
control issues have arisen as a result of these visits.

Checks carried out during the year to 31 August 2021 included:
Employee salary details and personnel records
Authorisation of salary amendments and payroll
Review of income from Education and Skills Funding Agency
Review of purchases – purchases orders and invoices
Review of Bank reconciliations
Review of control accounts
Review of the Website.
Compliance with the Academies Financial Handbook
Financial Planning and reporting

Due to Covid-19 the reviews took place remotely.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer the Executive Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of
the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal reviewer
the work of the external auditor
the school resource management self-assessment tool
the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal control by the Finance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

G Lane M-L Litton
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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As Accounting Officer of Wildern Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the
Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of
State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Academy Trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial
Handbook 2020.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety, or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

M-L Litton
Accounting Officer
13 December 2021
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of
good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have
been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

G Lane
Chair of Trustees
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Wildern Academy Trust (‘the charitable company’) for the
year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities (including the Income
and Expenditure Account), the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102
'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP
2019, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2021
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice;
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. It includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees’ Report (including the
Strategic Report), and the Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the Trustees’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the Trustees’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us;
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the purposes of our
audit.
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Responsibilities of the Trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable to preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate
the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the
Independent Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to
the Academy Trust, and the sector in which it operates. These include but are not limited to
compliance with the Companies Act 2006, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102
'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities
SORP 2019, the Academies Financial Handbook 2020, and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021.

We obtained an understanding of how the Academy Trust is complying with these frameworks
through discussions with management.
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We enquired with management whether there were any instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations or whether they had knowledge of actual or suspected fraud. These enquiries
are corroborated through follow-up audit procedures including but not limited to a review of
legal and professional costs, correspondence and a review of board minutes.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Academy Trust’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including the risk of fraud and management override of controls. We designed
our audit procedures to respond to this assessment, including the identification and testing of
any related party transactions and the testing of journal transactions that arise from
management estimates, that are determined to be of significant value or unusual in their
nature.

We assessed the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team, including consideration of the engagement team’s knowledge and
understanding of the sector in which the Academy Trust operates in, and their practical
experience through training and participation with audit engagements of a similar nature.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our Independent Auditor’s Report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

R Hurst FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Hopper Williams & Bell Limited
Statutory Auditor
Highland House, Mayflower Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh SO53 4AR

Date ………………………………………………
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 20 September 2019 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether
the expenditure disbursed and income received by Wildern Academy Trust during the period 1
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Wildern Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Wildern Academy Trust
and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Wildern
Academy Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Wildern Academy Trust’s Accounting Officer and the reporting
accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Wildern Academy Trust’s funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 March 2011 (together with the deed of
variation dated 26 June 2018) and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020,
for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August
2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do
not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express
a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the Academy Trust’s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
Consideration as to whether prior approval was sought from the Secretary of State where it is
required by the Academies Financial Handbook (effective from 1 September 2020) (AFH).
Review of any special payments to staff, including compromise agreements, to consider
whether prior approval was sought where required by the AFH and that any payments are in
line with the severance guidance published by ESFA.
Consideration as to whether any borrowings have been made in accordance with the AFH.
Review of any ‘minded to’ letters or Notices to Improve which have been issued to the
Academy Trust.
Review of any transactions with related parties to ensure that they have been carried out in
accordance with the AFH.
Review of governance arrangements to determine whether the requirements of the AFH have
been met.
Review of the Academy Trust’s internal controls, including whether the general control
environment has regard to the regularity of underlying transactions, including fraud
management.
Review of the Academy Trust’s procurement policies to determine effectiveness and testing a
sample of purchases to confirm that the policies have been correctly implemented.
Identifying any conditions associated with specialist grant income and determining whether it
has been spent as the purposes intended.
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Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31
August 2021 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do
not conform to the authorities which govern them.

R Hurst FCA
Reporting Accountant
Hopper Williams & Bell Limited
Chartered Accountants
Highland House, Mayflower Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh SO53 4AR

Date ………………………………………………
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Note

Un-
restricted

funds

Restricted
General

Funds

Restricted
Pension

Funds

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds
2020/21

Total
2019/20

Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2 - - - 26,122,352 26,122,352 8,646,888
Charitable activities:

Funding for the academy
trust’s educational operations 3 - 12,499,593 - - 12,499,593 11,462,290
Teaching schools 29 - 45,695 - - 45,695 65,646

Other trading activities 4 515,669 - - - 515,669 562,498
Investments 5 447 - - - 447 3,456

Total 516,116 12,545,288 - 26,122,352 39,183,756 20,740,778

Expenditure on:
Raising funds 6 576,564 - - - 576,564 685,003
Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational
operations 7 - 11,993,176 656,000 703,293 13,352,469 12,516,974
Teaching school 29 - 39,875 - - 39,875 49,537

Total 576,564 12,033,051 656,000 703,293 13,968,908 13,251,514

Net income / (expenditure) (60,448) 512,237 (656,000) 25,419,059 25,214,848 7,489,264

Transfers between funds 16 - (193,589) - 193,589 - -

Other recognised gains / (losses):

26 - - (394,000) - (394,000) (1,171,000)

Net movement in funds (60,448) 318,648 (1,050,000) 25,612,648 24,820,848 6,318,264

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 1,084,950 55,688 (5,190,000) 32,329,856 28,280,494 21,962,230
Total funds carried forward 1,024,502 374,336 (6,240,000) 57,942,504 53,101,342 28,280,494

Actuarial losses on defined
benefit pension schemes
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Note 2021 2021 2020 2020
£ £ £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 57,938,166 32,140,034

Current assets
Debtors 13 378,063 304,619
Cash at bank and in hand 2,015,365 1,796,901

2,393,428 2,101,520
Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 14 (910,150) (670,933)

Net current assets 1,483,278 1,430,587

Total assets less current liabilities 59,421,444 33,570,621

Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (80,102) (100,127)

Net assets excluding pension liability 59,341,342 33,470,494

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 26 (6,240,000) (5,190,000)

Total net assets 53,101,342 28,280,494

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund 16 57,942,504 32,329,856
Restricted income fund 16 374,336 55,688
Pension reserve 16 (6,240,000) (5,190,000)
Total restricted funds 52,076,840 27,195,544

Unrestricted income funds 16 1,024,502 1,084,950

Total funds 53,101,342 28,280,494

G Lane
Chair of Trustees

The financial statements on pages 43 to 71 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 13
December 2021 and are signed on their behalf by:

The notes on pages 46 to 71 form part of these financial statements.

44



Wildern Academy Trust
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2021

Note 2021 2020
£ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 20 617,115 (169,457)

Cash flows from financing activities 21 (20,025) (20,026)

Cash flows from investing activities 22 (378,626) (115,321)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period 218,464 (304,804)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2020 1,796,901 2,101,705

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021 23 2,015,365 1,796,901
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1 Accounting policies

•

•

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Donations

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:  Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Going Concern

Income

Basis of Preparation

Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.
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•

•

•

•

•

•

Other Income

Donated goods, facilities and services

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers on conversion/into the Academy Trust)

Income (continued)

Government Grants

Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income
from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and
depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust‘s accounting policies.

The accrual model has been used to recognise the grant on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
related staff costs are incurred.

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme

The following government grants have been received during the year:

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Charitable Activities

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’
and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value
the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they
are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Expenditure on Raising Funds
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Freehold Land and Buildings 2% straight line on buildings; not provided on land
Leasehold Land and Buildings 0
Furniture and Equipment 25% reducing balance
Computer Equipment 20% straight line
Motor Vehicles 25% straight line

Tangible Fixed Assets

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the
asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and
carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed
asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than land and assets under construction, at rates
calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Liabilities

Long leasehold land has not been depreciated as it is similar to freehold land, which does not require
depreciation.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Where the Academy Trust can identify the value of major components of freehold or leasehold buildings based
upon additions following conversion to academy status, the Academy Trust reviews whether one or more such
components have signi cantly different patterns of consumption of economic bene ts. In such cases, the
Academy Trust allocates the cost of the asset to its major components and depreciates each component
separately over its useful life.
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Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Leased Assets

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is
not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to
deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. An investment is treated
as a cash equivalent when it has a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Financial assets

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted
at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Cash at bank

Taxation

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial liabilities

Financial Instruments
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The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of
current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with
no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution
scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders
where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Pensions Benefits

Fund Accounting

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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2 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted 2020/21 2019/20
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Capital grants - 297,449 297,449 1,096,888
Donated fixed assets - 25,824,903 25,824,903 7,550,000

- 26,122,352 26,122,352 8,646,888

Total 2020 - 8,646,888 8,646,888

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

There are no other critical areas of judgement.

Agency arrangements

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from ESFA
and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the Academy
Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. [The Academy Trust can use up to XXX%
of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial
activities.] The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Critical areas of judgement

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results
from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The assumptions used are disclosed in note 26.
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3 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted 2020/21 2019/20
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 9,954,010 9,954,010 9,348,628
Pupil Premium - 277,449 277,449 217,239
Start Up Grants - 352,500 352,500 88,000
UIFSM - 21,114 21,114 10,395
Rates reclaim - 71,394 71,394 65,855
PE and sports grant - 16,300 16,300 -
Year 7 catch up grant - - - 27,761
Teachers' pay grant - 138,520 138,520 138,180
Teachers' pension grant - 391,421 391,421 390,459
Other DfE grants - 39,948 39,948 32,479
Teaching School Grants - 45,695 45,695 65,646

- 11,308,351 11,308,351 10,384,642

Other government grants
Local authority grants - 150,077 150,077 113,674
Other government grants - 383,655 383,655 489,330

- 533,732 533,732 603,004

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up premium - 161,920 161,920 -
Summer schools programme fund - 24,533 24,533 -

- 186,453 186,453 -

COVID-19 additional funding (non-DfE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant - 13,869 13,869 54,081
Other Coronavirus funding - 49,330 49,330 -

- 63,199 63,199 54,081

Other income from the Academy Trust’s educational operations
Trip income - 16,513 16,513 -
Catering income - 240,120 240,120 273,986
Other income - 196,920 196,920 212,223

- 453,553 453,553 486,209

- 12,545,288 12,545,288 11,527,936

Total 2020 - 11,527,936 11,527,936

52



Wildern Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

3 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations (continued)

4 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted 2020/21 2019/20
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Community income 515,669 - 515,669 562,498

Total 2020 562,498 - 562,498

5 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted 2020/21 2019/20
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 447 - 447 3,456

Total 2020 3,456 - 3,456

The Academy Trust received other Coronavirus funding in respect of mass testing funding.

The Academy Trust received £161,920 of funding for catch-up premium and this funding was fully spent during
the year.

In the prior year, the academy trust furloughed some of its catering, music, and community staff under the
government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The funding received related to staff costs in respect of 65 staff
which are included within the staff note below.

Following the reclassification of some grants received from the Department for Education and the ESFA in the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21, the Academy Trust’s funding for UIFSM, Rates reclaim, Year 7 catch up
grant, Teachers' pay grant, and Teachers' pension grant are no longer reported under the General Annual Grant
(GAG) and Other DfE grants headings, but as separate lines under the DfE/ESFA grants heading. A reallocation has
also been made in respect of trip income and other income.  The prior year numbers have been reclassified.
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6 Expenditure

Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2020/21 2019/20

£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure on raising funds 361,128 - 215,436 576,564 685,003
Academy's educational operations:

Direct costs 8,531,631 - 862,502 9,394,133 9,037,303
Allocated support costs 1,884,205 806,652 1,267,479 3,958,336 3,479,671

Teaching School 30,880 - 8,995 39,875 49,537
10,807,844 806,652 2,354,412 13,968,908 13,251,514

Total 2020 10,004,712 721,970 2,524,832 13,251,514

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:
2020/21 2019/20

£ £
Operating lease rentals 156,425 168,077
Depreciation 703,293 629,266
Fees payable to auditor for:

Audit 10,905 10,540
Other services 6,360 6,250

 Non Pay Expenditure
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7 Charitable activities

2020/21 2019/20
Total Total

£ £
Direct costs 9,434,008 9,086,840
Support costs 3,958,336 3,479,671

13,392,344 12,566,511

Analysis of support costs:
Educational 2020/21 2019/20
operations Total Total

£ £ £
Support staff costs 1,884,205 1,884,205 1,658,813
Depreciation 703,293 703,293 629,266
Premises costs 806,652 806,652 721,970
Legal costs - other 6,944 6,944 1,298
Other support costs 536,012 536,012 452,159
Governance costs 21,230 21,230 16,165
Total support costs 3,958,336 3,958,336 3,479,671

Total 2020 3,479,671 3,479,671
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8 Staff

a) Staff costs
Staff costs during the period were:

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Wages and salaries 7,846,655 7,360,960
Social security costs 710,381 643,528
Pension costs 2,250,808 2,000,224

10,807,844 10,004,712

b) Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2020/21 2019/20
No. No.

Teachers 140 136
Administration and support 162 189
Management 14 13

316 338

c) Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2020/21 2019/20
No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 4 2
£70,001 - £80,000 2 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1
£130,001 - £140,000 1 1

d) Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust
was £1,294,579 (2020: £1,235,220).
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9 Related Party Transactions – Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:
2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000
M-L Litton Remuneration 135-140 130-135
(Staff trustee and Accounting Officer) Employer’s pension contributions paid 30-35 30-35

10 Trustees and officers insurance

11 Central Services

No central services were provided by the Academy Trust to its academies during the period and no central
charges arose.

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the
Academy Trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

During the period ended 31 August 2021, no trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2020: £219 to
one trustee).

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10m. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the
overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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12 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold
Land and
Buildings

Leasehold
Land and
Buildings

Furniture
and

Equipment
Computer

Equipment
Motor

Vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2020 35,284,271 - 905,916 468,718 26,242 36,685,147
Acquisitions 224,508 25,800,000 207,137 269,780 - 26,501,425
At 31 August 2021 35,508,779 25,800,000 1,113,053 738,498 26,242 63,186,572

Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 3,717,864 - 574,174 226,833 26,242 4,545,113
Charged in year 518,317 - 108,882 76,094 - 703,293
At 31 August 2021 4,236,181 - 683,056 302,927 26,242 5,248,406

Net book values
At 31 August 2020 31,566,407 - 331,742 241,885 - 32,140,034
At 31 August 2021 31,272,598 25,800,000 429,997 435,571 - 57,938,166

13 Debtors

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Trade debtors 4,911 44,231
VAT recoverable 118,358 79,462
Prepayments and accrued income 254,794 180,926

378,063 304,619

The academy trust’s transactions relating to land and buildings included the acquisition of the leasehold land and
buildings of Deer Park School at a value of £25,800,000 under a 125 year lease from 12 July 2021.
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Trade creditors 374,214 243,995
Other taxation and social security 188,236 170,682
Loans falling due within one year 20,025 20,025
Other creditors falling due within one year 232,446 180,505
Accruals and deferred income 95,229 55,726

910,150 670,933

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2020 9,103 113,676
Released from previous years (9,103) (113,676)
Resources deferred in the year 27,762 9,103
Deferred income at 31 August 2021 27,762 9,103

15 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Loans falling due in greater than one year 80,102 100,127

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for provisional UIFSM funding
and trip income relating to the forthcoming financial year.

Loans falling due within one year comprises an interest free Salix energy efficiency loan which is repayable in bi-
annual instalments ending in September 2025.

Loans falling due in greater than one year comprises an interest free Salix energy efficiency loan which is
repayable in bi-annual instalments ending in September 2025.
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16 Funds
Balance at

Gains and 31 August
Income Expenditure Transfers losses 2021

£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 39,579 9,954,010 (9,447,593) (193,589) - 352,407
Pupil premium - 277,449 (277,449) - - -
Start Up Grants - 352,500 (352,500) - - -
UIFSM - 21,114 (21,114) - - -
Rates reclaim - 71,394 (71,394) - - -
PE and sports grant - 16,300 (16,300) - - -
Teachers' pay grant - 138,520 (138,520) - - -
Teachers' pension grant - 391,421 (391,421) - - -
Other DfE grants - 39,948 (39,948) - - -
Teaching School Grants 16,109 45,695 (39,875) - - 21,929
Local authority grants - 150,077 (150,077) - - -
Other government grants - 383,655 (383,655) - - -
Catch-up premium - 161,920 (161,920) - - -
Summer schools programme - 24,533 (24,533) - - -
Coronavirus Job Retention Sch. - 13,869 (13,869) - - -
Other Coronavirus funding - 49,330 (49,330) - - -
Other educational activities - 453,553 (453,553) - - -

55,688 12,545,288 (12,033,051) (193,589) - 374,336
Pension reserve (5,190,000) - (656,000) - (394,000) (6,240,000)

(5,134,312) 12,545,288 (12,689,051) (193,589) (394,000) (5,865,664)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed asset fund 32,140,034 - (703,293) 26,501,425 - 57,938,166
ESFA capital grants (DFC) - 40,586 - (36,248) - 4,338
DfE Managed Free Schools - 221,457 - (221,457) - -
Other capital grants 189,822 35,406 - (225,228) - -
Donated fixed assets - 25,824,903 - (25,824,903) - -

32,329,856 26,122,352 (703,293) 193,589 - 57,942,504

Total restricted funds 27,195,544 38,667,640 (13,392,344) - (394,000) 52,076,840

Total unrestricted funds 1,084,950 516,116 (576,564) - - 1,024,502

Total funds 28,280,494 39,183,756 (13,968,908) - (394,000) 53,101,342

2020
1 September

Balance at
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16 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General annual grant

Other DfE/ESFA grants

Teaching School

Local authority grants

Other educational activities

Pension reserve

Fixed asset fund

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Transfers between funds
Transfers to the restricted fixed asset fund represent the cost of fixed asset additions which have been funded
from restricted or unrestricted general funds.

Teaching schools are outstanding schools that work with others to provide high quality training and development
to new and experienced school staff.  This is funding received from the DfE/ESFA for this purpose.

This includes all other educational income/expenditure.

This is funding received from the DfE/ESFA specifically for expenditure on tangible fixed assets.

This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS pension scheme which was transferred
to the Academy Trust on conversion.

This is funding received from the ESFA for specific purposes.

This is funding received from the local authority for specific purposes, for example Special Educational Needs
funding.

This includes all funding received from the ESFA to carry out the objectives of the academy. It includes the school
budget share; minimum funding guarantee; education services grant; insurance; rates; and pre-16 high needs
funding streams.

The fund includes the value of the tangible fixed assets of the academy on conversion, and amounts transferred
from GAG or other restricted funds specifically for expenditure on tangible fixed assets, and the annual charges
for depreciation of these assets.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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16 Funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Wildern School 1,152,932 1,082,944
Boorley Park School 123,700 57,694
Deer Park School 122,206 -
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 1,398,838 1,140,638
Restricted fixed asset fund 57,942,504 32,329,856
Pension reserve (6,240,000) (5,190,000)
Total 53,101,342 28,280,494

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other
Educational Support Other Costs

Support Staff Staff Educational (excl. dep- 2020/21 2019/20
Costs Costs Supplies reciation) Total Total

£ £ £ £ £ £
Wildern School 8,277,688 2,069,214 820,771 1,484,339 12,652,012 12,223,392
Boorley Park School 228,339 153,659 22,534 77,633 482,165 387,611
Deer Park School 56,484 22,460 28,192 24,302 131,438 11,245

8,562,511 2,245,333 871,497 1,586,274 13,265,615 12,622,248

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:
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16 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at
Gains and 31 August

Income Expenditure Transfers losses 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 211,913 9,348,628 (9,286,443) (234,519) - 39,579
Pupil premium - 217,239 (217,239) - - -
Start Up Grants - 88,000 (88,000) - - -
UIFSM - 10,395 (10,395) - - -
Rates reclaim - 65,855 (65,855) - - -
Year 7 catch up grant - 27,761 (27,761) - - -
Teachers' pay grant - 138,180 (138,180) - - -
Teachers' pension grant - 390,459 (390,459) - - -
Other DfE grants - 32,479 (32,479) - - -
Teaching School Grants - 65,646 (49,537) - - 16,109
Local authority grants - 113,674 (113,674) - - -
Other government grants 25,603 489,330 (514,933) - - -
Coronavirus Job Retention Sch. - 54,081 (54,081) - - -
Other educational activities - 486,209 (486,209) - - -

237,516 11,527,936 (11,475,245) (234,519) - 55,688
Pension reserve (3,557,000) - (462,000) - (1,171,000) (5,190,000)

(3,319,484) 11,527,936 (11,937,245) (234,519) (1,171,000) (5,134,312)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed asset fund 24,003,635 - (629,266) 8,765,665 - 32,140,034
ESFA capital grants (DFC) - 36,518 - (36,518) - -
DfE Managed Free Schools - 18,999 - (18,999) - -
Other capital grants 74,080 1,041,371 - (925,629) - 189,822
Donated fixed assets - 7,550,000 - (7,550,000) - -

24,077,715 8,646,888 (629,266) 234,519 - 32,329,856

Total restricted funds 20,758,231 20,174,824 (12,566,511) - (1,171,000) 27,195,544

Total unrestricted funds 1,203,999 565,954 (685,003) - - 1,084,950

Total funds 21,962,230 20,740,778 (13,251,514) - (1,171,000) 28,280,494

Balance at
1 September

2019
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17 Analysis of net assets between funds

Un-
restricted

funds

Restricted
general

funds

Restricted
pension

funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - - 57,938,166 57,938,166
Current assets 1,024,502 1,364,588 - 4,338 2,393,428
Current liabilities - (910,150) - - (910,150)
Non-current liabilities - (80,102) - - (80,102)
Pension scheme liability - - (6,240,000) - (6,240,000)
Total net assets 1,024,502 374,336 (6,240,000) 57,942,504 53,101,342

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Un-
restricted

funds

Restricted
general

funds

Restricted
pension

funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - - 32,140,034 32,140,034
Current assets 1,084,950 826,748 - 189,822 2,101,520
Current liabilities - (670,933) - - (670,933)
Non-current liabilities - (100,127) - - (100,127)
Pension scheme liability - - (5,190,000) - (5,190,000)
Total net assets 1,084,950 55,688 (5,190,000) 32,329,856 28,280,494

18 Capital commitments

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements - 189,103

19 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Amounts due within one year 89,721 114,313
Amounts due between one and five years 50,220 114,579

139,941 228,892

At 31 August 2021 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:
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20 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Net income for the reporting period 25,214,848 7,489,264

Adjusted for:
Depreciation 703,293 629,266
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (26,122,352) (8,646,888)
Interest receivable (447) (3,456)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 570,000 398,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 86,000 64,000
Increase in debtors (73,444) (80,317)
Increase / (decrease) in creditors 239,217 (19,326)
Net cash provided by / (used in) Operating Activities 617,115 (169,457)

21 Cash flows from financing activities

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Repayments of borrowing (20,025) (20,026)
Net cash used in financing activities (20,025) (20,026)

22 Cash flows from investing activities

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 447 3,456
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (676,522) (1,215,665)
Capital grants from DfE Group 297,449 1,096,888
Net cash used in investing activities (378,626) (115,321)

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 2,015,365 1,796,901
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24 Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 Acquisition/ New Other At 31
September Cash disposal of finance non-cash August

2020 flows subsidiaries leases changes 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cash 1,796,901 218,464 - - - 2,015,365
Loans falling due within

one year (20,025) - - - - (20,025)
Loans falling due after

more than one year (100,127) 20,025 - - - (80,102)
Total 1,676,749 238,489 - - - 1,915,238

25 Members liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.
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26 Pension and similar obligations

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

• employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy).
•

• the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019.

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every four years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

Contributions amounting to £194,510 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020: £180,505) and are
included within creditors.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit
of £22,000 million.

The Academy Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by Hampshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

2021 2020
£ £

Employer’s contributions 354,000 358,000
Employees’ contributions 114,000 107,000

468,000 465,000

Principal actuarial assumptions
2021 2020

Rate of increase in salaries 3.6% 3.3%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.6% 2.3%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.7% 1.7%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.6% 2.3%

2021 2020
Retiring today
Males 23.1 23.0
Females 25.5 25.5

Retiring in 20 years
Males 24.8 24.7
Females 27.3 27.2

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,320,802 (2020: £1,237,521).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.9% for employers and 5.5% to 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
an Academy Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy
Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was as follows:

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

68



Wildern Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

2021 2020
£ £

Discount rate +0.1% (369,000) (303,000)
Discount rate -0.1% 381,000 313,000
Mortality assumption – 1 year increase 470,000 365,000
Mortality assumption – 1 year decrease (458,000) (365,000)

The Academy Trust’s share of the assets in the scheme were:
2021 2020

£ £
Equities 3,749,000 2,977,000
Gilts 1,153,000 1,019,000
Property 389,000 315,000
Cash 52,000 84,000
Other 1,132,000 856,000
Total market value of assets 6,475,000 5,251,000

- -
The actual return on scheme assets was £971,000 (2020: £277,000).

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
2020/21 2019/20

£ £
Current service cost 924,000 756,000
Interest income (91,000) (90,000)
Interest cost 177,000 154,000
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 1,010,000 820,000

Increase/(reduction) in
defined benefit obligation
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2020/21 2019/20

£ £
At 1 September 10,441,000 8,085,000
Current service cost 924,000 756,000
Interest cost 177,000 154,000
Employee contributions 114,000 107,000
Actuarial loss 1,274,000 1,358,000
Benefits paid (215,000) (19,000)
At 31 August 12,715,000 10,441,000

Changes in the fair value of Academy Trust’s share of scheme assets:
2020/21 2019/20

£ £
At 1 September 5,251,000 4,528,000
Interest income 91,000 90,000
Actuarial gain 880,000 187,000
Employer contributions 354,000 358,000
Employee contributions 114,000 107,000
Benefits paid (215,000) (19,000)
At 31 August 6,475,000 5,251,000

27 Related party transactions

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’ remuneration and
expenses already disclosed in note 9.
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28 Agency arrangements

29 Teaching school trading account

2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2019/20
£ £ £ £

Income
Direct Income 45,695 65,646

Total Income 45,695 65,646
- -

Expenditure
Direct staff costs 17,573 16,090
Other direct costs 8,995 17,452

Total direct costs 26,568 33,542

Other costs
Support staff costs 13,307 15,995

Total other costs 13,307 15,995

Total Expenditure 39,875 49,537
- -

Transfers between funds excluding depreciation - -

Surplus/(Deficit) from all sources 5,820 16,109
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020 16,109 -
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021 21,929 16,109

30 Events after the end of the reporting period

Deer Park School opened on 1 September 2021.

The Academy Trust distributes School Centred Initial Teacher Training bursary funds to students as an agent for
ESFA. In the accounting period ended 31 August 2021 the Academy Trust received £516,100 and disbursed
£500,150 from the fund. An amount of £15,950 is in included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds
that are repayable to ESFA.
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